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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
WESTERN DISTRICT OF WASHINGTON

AT SEATTLE
DARREL FORNEY,
Plaintiff, No.
V.
COMPLAINT
BUD CLARY CHEVROLET,
Defendant.

Darrel Forney, by and through his undersigned attorneys, brings this complaint against

the Defendant, Bud Clary Chevrolet, and alleges the following:
I. NATURE OF THIS ACTION

1. This is a civil action brought pursuant to the Uniformed Services Employment
and Reemployment Rights Act of 1994, 38 U.S.C. § 4301 et seq. (hereinafter “USERRA”).
Bud Clary Chevrolet violated Mr. Forney’s USERRA rights by terminating him for his
intention to join the Armed Services.

1. JURISDICTION AND VENUE

2. This Court has jurisdiction over this action pursuant to 28 U.S.C. 8 1331 and

38 U.S.C. § 4323(b).
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3. The United States District Court for the Western District of Washington is a
proper venue for this action under 38 U.S.C. 8 4323(c) because Defendant maintains a place of

business in this judicial district.

4, All statutory conditions precedent to the initiation of this lawsuit have been
fulfilled.
1. PARTIES
5. Plaintiff is a former employee of Defendant and is currently an Airman stationed

at Naval Air Station, Pensacola, Florida.

6. Defendant Bud Clary Chevrolet is a new and used car dealership that maintains
a place of business at 1030 Commerce Avenue, Longview, Washington.

7. Defendant is an employer within the meaning of USERRA, 38 U.S.C.
8 4303(4)(A) because it paid Forney’s salary or wages for the work he performed while he was
a permanent employee and had control over his employment opportunities while he was
employed at Bud Clary Chevrolet.

IV. FACTS

8. Forney began discussions with an Army recruiter about joining the Army
Reserves in July 2013.

9. Forney began work at Bud Clary Chevrolet on September 16, 2013. He was
hired to be a lube technician in the Service Department at the Longview, Washington location.
Through the course of his employment there he worked approximately 45 hours per week,

earning $12/hour.
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10.  Throughout Forney’s employment at Bud Clary Chevrolet, Forney spoke
frequently about his intention to join the Army Reserves (and later the Navy Reserves). It was
common knowledge among the employees and management that he had such an intention.
Specifically, the Service Manager, and Forney’s supervisor, heard during this time that Forney
intended to join the military.

11. Forney never received any counseling related to his employment at Bud Clary
Chevrolet; he was never warned about his behavior or performance and was never disciplined
at any time during his employment.

12. Nonetheless, on January 31, 2014, the Service Manager asked to speak with
Forney and informed him that he was terminated. When Forney inquired why, the Service
Manager told him it was because Forney intended to leave Bud Clary Chevrolet anyway and
because the Service Manager was restructuring the Service Department.

13. During that conversation, the Service Manager volunteered that he heard Forney
was leaving for the military. Forney informed him that he had not planned to do so for a
number of months, to which the Service Manager responded that he was moving Forney’s
enlistment timetable up and making January 31, 2014 Forney’s last day on the job.

14. Bud Clary Chevrolet hired another lube technician to replace Forney. His
replacement is not a member of the armed services and was not at the time of hiring.

15. On March 20, 2014, Forney signed an Enlistment Guarantee with the Navy
Reserves. After which, Forney made multiple attempts to find work so that he could support
himself and his family prior to his ship date, but he was unsuccessful. Ultimately, the Navy

moved Forney’s ship date up from November 6, 2014 to July 8, 2014.
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16. Since that time, and lacking a job to return to, Forney chose to switch from the
Navy Reserves to active duty. He is now an Airman (e-3) stationed at Naval Air Station,
Pensacola, Florida. As an active duty member of the Navy, Forney will stay in Florida for an
additional 3.5 years after his initial training is complete. His wife and small child both continue
to reside in Kelso, Washington.

17. As a direct result of Defendant’s termination of Forney from his position as lube
technician, Forney lost substantial wages and benefits.

18. In accordance with Section 38 U.S.C. § 4322(a) of USERRA, Forney filed a
complaint in 2014 with the VVeterans’ Employment and Training Services (“VETS”) of the
United States Department of Labor. VETS conducted an investigation and concluded that
Plaintiff’s rights were violated under USERRA. In November 2014, the Department of Labor
referred Plaintiff’s claims to the Department of Justice with a finding of merit.

V. USERRA CLAIM

19. Plaintiff re-alleges and incorporates Paragraphs 1through 18 as if fully set forth
herein.

20. USERRA provides that “an employer may not discriminate in employment
against or take any adverse employment action against any person because such person . . . has
exercised a right provided for in this chapter.” 38 U.S.C. § 4311(b). Further, Section 4311 (a)
provides that a “person who is a member of . . . a uniform service shall not be denied . . .
retention in employment . . . on the basis of that membership, application for membership,
performance of service, application for service, or obligation.”

21. In January 2014, Defendant violated USERRA by terminating his employment

on the basis of his application for membership in the Armed Services.
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22. Defendant’s violation of USERRA was willful and in reckless disregard of
Plaintiff’s rights under the statute.

V1. PRAYER FOR RELIEF

Wherefore, Plaintiff requests this Court enter judgment against Defendant, as follows:

A. Declare that Defendant’s actions were in violation of USERRA’s reemployment
provisions, 38 U.S.C. § 4311;

B. Order that Defendant comply with the provisions of USERRA,

C. Order that Defendant pay Plaintiff all amounts due to him for loss of wages and
other benefits of employment cause by Defendant’s violation of USERRA pursuant to 38
U.S.C. § 4323(d)(1)(B);

D. Award Plaintiff liquidated damages in an amount equal to the amount of lost
wages and other benefits of employment suffered by reason of Defendant’s willful violations of
USERRA, pursuant to 38 U.S.C. § 4323(d)(1)(C);

E. Reinstate Plaintiff into the position held previous to his termination upon
completion of his duties with the Armed Services, pursuant to 38 U.S.C. § 4323(e);

F. Grant any other such relief as may be due and just.

Respectfully submitted this 7th day of July, 2015.

ANNETTE L. HAYES
United States Attorney

/s/ Christina Fogg
CHRISTINA FOGG, WSBA 40159
Assistant United States Attorney
United States Attorney’s Office
Western District of Washington
700 Stewart Street, Suite 5220
Seattle, WA 98101
Telephone: (206) 553-4299
Email: christina.fogg@usdoj.gov
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